
NEVADA STATE BOARD  

of 
DENTAL EXAMINERS 

 

 

 

Board Teleconference Meeting 

 

Tuesday, August 8th, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

 
 

PUBLIC BOOK  



Page 1 Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners – Board Teleconference Meeting – Tuesday, August 8th, 2023 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Meeting Date & Time 
Tuesday, August 8th, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

Meeting Location: 

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners 
2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy., Suite 104 

Henderson, NV 89014 

Video Conferencing / Teleconferencing Available 
To access by phone, call Zoom teleconference Phone Number: (669) 900 6833 
To access by video webinar, visit www.zoom.com or use the Zoom app  

Zoom Webinar/Meeting ID#: 882 8944 1201 
Zoom Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 368792 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form, Live Public Comment, and by teleconference is available after roll call (beginning of 
meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes for each individual. 

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, 
Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board 
on or before Monday, August 7th, 2023, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment 
submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record. 

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing before the 
Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 3) pull or remove items 
from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional 
competence or physical or mental health of a person.   See NRS 241.030. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or 
a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See 
NRS 233B.126. 

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone conference, it is possible that an 
amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with 
the Open Meeting Law. 

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If 
special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you may download the 
supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the supporting materials for the public 
body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014. 

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action. 
Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or tabled. 



Page 2 Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners – Board Teleconference Meeting – Tuesday, August 8th, 2023 

1. Call to Order
- Roll call/Quorum

2. Public Comment (Live public comment, by teleconference, and pre-submitted email/written form):
The public comment period is limited to matters  specifically noticed on the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised
during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the
public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not be limited based upon 
viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing messages to the    Board
office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Monday, August 7th, 2023, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record
during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included in
the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual, the Chair
may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State
Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. 

*3. President’s Report: (For Possible Action)

*a. Request to remove agenda item(s) (For Possible Action)

*b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action)

*4. Secretary – Treasurer’s Report: (For Possible Action)

*a. Approval/Rejection of Minutes (For Possible Action)

*5.   General Counsel’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

*a.  Legal Actions/Litigation Update (For Informational Purposes Only)

*b.  Regulatory Update (For Informational Purposes Only)

*c.  Review Panel – NRS 631.3635 (For Possible Action) 

*d. Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Stipulation Agreements –
NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330 (For Possible Action) 

(1)
(2)

*e. Authorized Investigative Complaints – NRS 631.360 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Dr Z- The Board has received information alleging that Dr. Z may have been operating
a dental practice without proper licensure and/or permitting, thereby potentially
violating NAC 631.138; NAC 631.2213; NAC 631.2217; NAC 631.2219; NAC 631.2236;
NAC 631.230; NRS 631.265; NRS 631.388; and NRS 631.397.

*6. New Business: (For Possible Action) 

*a. Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia Permit – NAC 631.2254  (For Possible Action)

(1) Jacob Ozuna, DMD – Pediatric Moderate Sedation
(2) Justin M. Vo, DMD – Pediatric Moderate Sedation
(3) Paymon P. Mehryar, DDS – Moderate Sedation
(4) Michael G. Aglietti, DMD – General Anesthesia
(5) Audrey H. Riegel, DMD – Moderate Sedation
(6) George L. Leonakis, DDS – Moderate Sedation

*b. Approval/Rejection of 90-Day Extension of Temporary Anesthesia Permit – NAC 631.2254(2)
(For Possible Action) 

(1) Anna Shagharyan, DMD – Moderate Sedation
(2) Zachary M. Polonus, DDS – Moderate Sedation
(3) Farah Divanbeigi, DDS – Moderate Sedation
(4) Jonathan M. Winfield, DDS – Moderate Sedation



Page 3 Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners – Board Teleconference Meeting – Tuesday, August 8th, 2023 

*c. Approval/Rejection of Voluntary Surrender of License – NAC 631.160 (For Possible Action) 

(1) Loren Cadelinia, DDS, MS
(2) Sierra Williams, RDH
(3) Kathie Ann Russell, RDH
(4) Patrick A. O’Connor, DDS
(5) Anthony Q. Phan, DMD

*d. Review, Consider and Discuss Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year Ending (FYE)
 June 30th, 2024, and Possible Recommendation to the Board Regarding Approval/Rejection 
 of the Proposed Budget for FYE June 30th, 2024 – NRS 631.190  (For Possible Action) 

(1) BDO – Mishey Bolusan

*7. Public Comment (Live public comment and by teleconference): This public comment period is for any matter
that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during public comment unless the 
matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) 
minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may 
allow additional time at his/her discretion. 

Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by mailing/faxing messages to the Board  
office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Monday, August 7th, 2023, by 4:00 p.m. may be entered into the record 
during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be included 
in the permanent record. 

In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Manual, the Chair 
may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State 
Board of Dental Examiners, or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other speakers. 

*8. Announcements

*9. Adjournment (For Possible Action)

PUBLIC NOTICE POSTING LOCATIONS 
Office of the N.S.B.D.E.  2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy  Ste. 104  Henderson  NV 89014 

State Board of Dental Examiners website: www.dental.nv.gov 
Nevada Public Posting Website: www.notice.nv.gov 



Agenda Item 5(d)

Consideration, Review, and Possible Approval/Rejection 
of Stipulation Agreements

NRS 631.3635; NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330

Confidential Board Book Pg. 1



NRS 631.3635  Appointment of panel to review investigation or informal hearing; members; 

requirements of review; findings and recommendation. 

1. The Board shall appoint a panel to review an investigation or informal hearing conducted

pursuant to NRS 631.363. Such a panel must consist of: 

(a) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice

dental hygiene, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dentistry, one 

member of the Board who is a holder of a license to practice dental hygiene and one holder of a 

license to practice dental hygiene who is not a member of the Board and is not the subject of the 

investigation or informal hearing. 

(b) If the subject of the investigation or informal hearing is a holder of a license to practice

dentistry or any other person not described in paragraph (a), one member of the Board who is a 

holder of a license to practice dentistry, one member of the Board who is a holder of a license to 

practice dental hygiene and one holder of a license to practice dentistry who is not a member of 

the Board and is not the subject of the investigation or informal hearing. 

2. A review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 shall, in conducting a review of an

investigation or informal hearing conducted pursuant to NRS 631.363, review and consider, 

without limitation: 

(a) All files and records collected or produced by the investigator;

(b) Any written findings of fact and conclusions prepared by the investigator; and

(c) Any other information deemed necessary by the review panel.

3. The investigator who conducted the investigation or informal hearing pursuant to NRS

631.363 shall not participate in a review conducted pursuant to subsection 1. 

4. Before the Board takes any action or makes any disposition relating to a complaint, the

review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 to conduct a review of the investigation or 

informal hearing relating to the complaint shall present to the Board its findings and 

recommendation relating to the investigation or informal hearing, and the Board shall review and 

consider those findings and recommendations. 

5. Meetings held by a review panel appointed pursuant to subsection 1 are not subject to the

provisions of chapter 241 of NRS. 

      (Added to NRS by 2017, 988) 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 2



NRS 622A.170  Informal dispositions; consent and settlement agreements; designation of 

hearing panels. 

1. The provisions of this chapter do not affect or limit the authority of a regulatory body, at

any stage of a contested case, to make an informal disposition of the contested case pursuant to 

subsection 5 of NRS 233B.121 or to enter into a consent or settlement agreement approved by 

the regulatory body pursuant to NRS 622.330. 

2. The provisions of this chapter do not affect or limit the authority of a regulatory body to

designate a panel of its members to hear a contested case pursuant to this chapter. 

 (Added to NRS by 2005, 744) 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 3



NRS 622.330  Consent and settlement agreements: Conditions for entry; deemed public 

records; exceptions. 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a regulatory body may not enter into a

consent or settlement agreement with a person who has allegedly committed a violation of any 

provision of this title which the regulatory body has the authority to enforce, any regulation 

adopted pursuant thereto or any order of the regulatory body, unless the regulatory body 

discusses and approves the terms of the agreement in a public meeting. 

2. A regulatory body that consists of one natural person may enter into a consent or

settlement agreement without complying with the provisions of subsection 1 if: 

(a) The regulatory body posts notice in accordance with the requirements for notice for a

meeting held pursuant to chapter 241 of NRS and the notice states that: 

(1) The regulatory body intends to resolve the alleged violation by entering into a

consent or settlement agreement with the person who allegedly committed the violation; and 

(2) For the limited time set forth in the notice, any person may request that the

regulatory body conduct a public meeting to discuss the terms of the consent or settlement 

agreement by submitting a written request for such a meeting to the regulatory body within the 

time prescribed in the notice; and 

(b) At the expiration of the time prescribed in the notice, the regulatory body has not

received any requests for a public meeting regarding the consent or settlement agreement. 

3. If a regulatory body enters into a consent or settlement agreement that is subject to the

provisions of this section, the agreement is a public record. 

4. The provisions of this section do not apply to a consent or settlement agreement between

a regulatory body and a licensee that provides for the licensee to enter a diversionary program for 

the treatment of an alcohol or other substance use disorder. 

 (Added to NRS by 2003, 3417) 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 4





Agenda Item 5(d)(2)

Confidential Board Book Pg. 16



Confidential Board Book Pg. 17



Confidential Board Book Pg. 18



Confidential Board Book Pg. 19



Confidential Board Book Pg. 20



Confidential Board Book Pg. 21



Confidential Board Book Pg. 22



Agenda Item 5(e)

Authorized Investigative Complaints
NRS 631.360 (For Possible Action)

Confidential Board Book Pg. 26



      NRS 631.360  Investigation, notice and hearing; subpoena; search warrant; continuances; 

retention of complaints; regulations. [Effective January 1, 2020.] 

1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.364, the Board may, upon its own motion, and

shall, upon the verified complaint in writing of any person setting forth facts which, if proven, 

would constitute grounds for initiating disciplinary action, investigate the actions of any person 

who practices dentistry, dental hygiene or dental therapy in this State. A complaint may be filed 

anonymously. If a complaint is filed anonymously, the Board may accept the complaint but may 

refuse to consider the complaint if anonymity of the complainant makes processing the 

complaint impossible or unfair to the person who is the subject of the complaint. 

2. The Board shall, before initiating disciplinary action, at least 10 days before the date set

for the hearing, notify the accused person in writing of any charges made. The notice may be 

served by delivery of it personally to the accused person or by mailing it by registered or 

certified mail to the place of business last specified by the accused person, as registered with the 

Board. 

3. At the time and place fixed in the notice, the Board shall proceed to hear the charges. If

the Board receives a report pursuant to subsection 5 of NRS 228.420, a hearing must be held 

within 30 days after receiving the report. 

4. The Board may compel the attendance of witnesses or the production of documents or

objects by subpoena. The Board may adopt regulations that set forth a procedure pursuant to 

which the Executive Director may issue subpoenas on behalf of the Board. Any person who is 

subpoenaed pursuant to this subsection may request the Board to modify the terms of the 

subpoena or grant additional time for compliance. 

5. The Board may obtain a search warrant from a magistrate upon a showing that the

warrant is needed for an investigation or hearing being conducted by the Board and that 

reasonable cause exists to issue the warrant. 

6. If the Board is not sitting at the time and place fixed in the notice, or at the time and

place to which the hearing has been continued, the Board shall continue the hearing for a period 

not to exceed 30 days. 

7. The Board shall retain all complaints received by the Board pursuant to this section for at

least 10 years, including, without limitation, any complaints not acted upon. 

      [Part 11:152:1951] — (NRS A 1969, 95; 1981, 99; 1983, 1114; 1993, 784; 2007, 508; 2009, 

883; 2013, 2219; 2017, 4415, effective January 1, 2020) 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 27



 NAC 631.2213  Permit required; qualifications of applicants. (NRS 
631.190, 631.265) 
 
     1.  Except as otherwise set forth in NAC 631.2211 to 631.2256, inclusive, no 
dentist may: 
     (a) Use general anesthesia or deep sedation for dental patients, except in a facility 
for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or she first: 
          (1) Obtains a general anesthesia permit; or 
          (2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general 
anesthesia permit to administer general anesthesia to his or her patients, and obtains a 
certificate of site approval for each location at which general anesthesia, deep sedation 
or moderate sedation is administered to his or her patients; 
     (b) Use moderate sedation for dental patients who are 13 years of age or older, 
except in a facility for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or 
she first: 
          (1) Obtains a general anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant 
to paragraph (a) of subsection 2; or 
          (2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general 
anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 
2 to administer moderate sedation to his or her patients who are 13 years of age or older, 
and obtains a certificate of site approval for each location at which moderate sedation 
is administered to his or her patients who are 13 years of age or older; or 
     (c) Use moderate sedation for dental patients who are 12 years of age or younger, 
except in a facility for which a permit is held as required by NRS 449.442, unless he or 
she first: 
          (1) Obtains a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 
2; or 
          (2) Employs a dentist who is licensed in this State and who holds a general 
anesthesia permit or a moderate sedation permit pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 
2 to administer moderate sedation to his or her patients who are 12 years of age or 
younger, and obtains a certificate of site approval for each location at which moderate 
sedation is administered to his or her patients who are 12 years of age or younger. 
     2.  To obtain a general anesthesia permit or moderate sedation permit, a dentist 
must apply to the Board for such a permit on a form prescribed by the Board, submit 
any fees that are set by the Board pursuant to NRS 631.345 and produce evidence 
showing that he or she is a dentist who is licensed in this State, and: 
     (a) For a moderate sedation permit to administer moderate sedation to a patient 13 
years of age or older, the applicant must show evidence of: 
          (1) The completion of a course of study, subject to the approval of the Board, of 
not less than 60 hours dedicated exclusively to the administration of moderate sedation, 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 28



and the successful administration as the operator of moderate sedation to not less than 
20 patients; or 
          (2) The completion of a program for specialty training which is approved by the 
Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association and which 
includes education and training in the administration of moderate sedation that is 
equivalent to the education and training described in subparagraph (1) and: 
               (I) Valid certification in Advanced Cardiac Life Support by the American 
Heart Association; or 
               (II) The completion of a course approved by the Board that provides 
instruction on medical emergencies and airway management. 
     (b) For a moderate sedation permit to administer moderate sedation to a patient 12 
years of age or younger, the applicant must show evidence of: 
          (1) The completion of a course of study, subject to the approval of the Board, of 
not less than 60 hours dedicated exclusively to the administration of moderate sedation 
to patients 12 years of age or younger, and the successful administration as the operator 
of moderate sedation to not less than 25 patients who are 12 years of age or younger; or 
          (2) The completion of a program for specialty training which is approved by the 
Commission on Dental Accreditation of the American Dental Association and which 
includes education and training in the administration of moderate sedation that is 
equivalent to the education and training described in subparagraph (1) and: 
               (I) Valid certification in Pediatric Advanced Life Support by the American 
Heart Association; or 
               (II) The completion of a course approved by the Board that provides 
instruction on medical emergencies and airway management. 
     (c) For a general anesthesia permit, the applicant must show evidence of the 
completion of an Advanced Cardiac Life Support course given by the American Heart 
Association or a course providing similar instruction that is approved by the Board, and: 
          (1) The completion of a program, subject to the approval of the Board, of 
advanced training in anesthesiology and related academic subjects beyond the level of 
undergraduate dental school in a training program as described in the Guidelines for 
Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students, published by the 
American Dental Association, 211 East Chicago Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60611, and 
available, free of charge, at the Internet 
address http://www.ada.org/~/media/ADA/Education%20and%20Careers/Files/A
DA Sedation Teaching Guidelines.pdf?la=en; or 
          (2) The completion of a graduate program in oral and maxillofacial surgery or 
dental anesthesiology which has been approved by the Commission on Dental 
Accreditation of the American Dental Association. 
     3.  A holder of a general anesthesia permit may administer general anesthesia, deep 
sedation or moderate sedation to a patient of any age. 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 29



     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 10-21-83; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; 
R159-08, 4-23-2009; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 30



NAC 631.2217  Review of holder of permit; renewal of permit. (NRS 
631.190, 631.265) 
 
     1.  The holder of a general anesthesia permit or moderate sedation permit is subject 
to review by the Board at any time. 
     2.  Each general anesthesia permit and moderate sedation permit must be renewed 
annually or biennially, as applicable, based on the renewal period set forth in NRS 
631.330 for the type of license held by the holder of the permit. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 10-21-83; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; 
R158-08, 12-17-2008; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 31



NAC 631.2219  Inspection and evaluation; renewal of permit; reevaluation of 
credentials. (NRS 631.190, 631.265) 
 
     1.  The Board will require an inspection and evaluation of the facility, equipment, 
personnel, records of patients and the procedures used by every dentist who seeks or 
holds a general anesthesia permit or moderate sedation permit, and of the dentist himself 
or herself, before issuing such an original permit to the dentist, and at least once in every 
5-year period thereafter. 
     2.  The Board will renew general anesthesia permits and moderate sedation permits 
annually or biennially, as applicable, based on the renewal period set forth in NRS 
631.330 for the type of license held by the holder of the permit, unless the holder is 
informed in writing, 60 days before the date for renewal, that a reevaluation of his or 
her credentials is required. In determining whether reevaluation is necessary, the Board 
will consider, among other factors, complaints by patients and reports of adverse 
occurrences. A reevaluation will, if appropriate, include an inspection of the facility, 
equipment, personnel, records of patients and the procedures used by the holder, and an 
examination of his or her qualifications. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 10-21-83; A 7-30-84; R005-99, 9-7-
2000; R158-08, 12-17-2008; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 32



NAC 631.2236  Certificate of site approval: Application; inspection; report of 
determination of inspector; issuance of certificate for passing; failure to pass; 
request for reevaluation; issuance of order for summary suspension. (NRS 
631.190, 631.265) 
     1.  A dentist who is licensed in this State may employ a dentist who is licensed in 
this State and who holds a general anesthesia permit or moderate sedation permit to 
administer general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate sedation, as appropriate, to 
his or her patients at his or her office if he or she holds a certificate of site approval 
issued pursuant to this section. 
     2.  A dentist who is licensed in this State and who desires to receive or renew a 
certificate of site approval must submit to the Board: 
     (a) An application for a certificate or for the renewal of a certificate, in a form 
approved by the Board; 
     (b) The fee for the inspection of a facility which is established by the Board pursuant 
to NRS 631.345; and 
     (c) Written documentation which demonstrates that the dentist who is to be 
employed to administer the general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate sedation 
holds an appropriate permit issued by the Board to administer such anesthesia or 
sedation. 
     3.  Upon receipt of an application pursuant to this section, the Board will appoint 
one of its members or a representative of the Board to inspect the office of the applicant 
to determine whether the office complies with the requirements set forth in NAC 
631.2227, 631.2229 and 631.2231. The person conducting the inspection shall report 
his or her determination to the Board. 
     4.  If the person conducting the inspection determines that the office of the 
applicant complies with the requirements of NAC 
631.2227, 631.2229 and 631.2231 and the applicant has otherwise met the 
requirements of this section, the Executive Director shall issue a certificate of site 
approval to the applicant. 
     5.  A holder of a certificate of site approval shall maintain the information described 
in paragraph (c) of subsection 2 at his or her office at all times. 
     6.  If the office of the applicant does not meet the requirements set forth in NAC 
631.2227, 631.2229 and 631.2231, the Executive Director shall issue a written notice 
to the licensed dentist who owns the dental practice conducted at the office that 
identifies the reasons the office failed the inspection. 
     7.  A dentist who has received a notice of failure from the Executive Director 
pursuant to subsection 6: 
     (a) Must cease the administration of any general anesthesia, deep sedation or 
moderate sedation at his or her office until the Board has issued a certificate of site 
approval for the office; and 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 33



     (b) May, within 15 days after receiving the notice, request the Board in writing for 
a reevaluation. 
     8.  If the reevaluation is granted by the Board, it will be conducted by different 
persons in the manner set forth by NAC 631.2227, 631.2229 and 631.2231 for an 
original inspection. 
     9.  Pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 233B.127, if an evaluation or inspection of a 
dentist’s office indicates that the public health, safety or welfare imperatively requires 
emergency action, the President of the Board may, without any further action by the 
Board, issue an order of summary suspension of the license of the dentist who owns the 
dental practice conducted at the office and the licenses of any or all of the other licensees 
employed at the office pending proceedings for revocation or other action. An order of 
summary suspension issued by the President of the Board must contain findings of the 
exigent circumstances which warrant the issuance of the order of summary suspension. 
The President of the Board shall not participate in any further proceedings relating to 
the order. 
     10.  Each certificate of site approval issued by the Board must be renewed annually 
or biennially, as applicable, based on the renewal period set forth in NRS 631.330 for 
the type of license held by the holder of the certificate. 
     11.  The Board may reinspect the office of the holder of a certificate of site approval 
at any time. 
     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs by R005-99, eff. 9-7-2000; A by R231-
03, 5-25-2004; R158-08, 12-17-2008; R159-08, 4-23-2009; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 34



 NAC 631.230  Unprofessional conduct. (NRS 
631.190, 631.346, 631.347, 631.350) 
 
     1.  In addition to those specified by statute and subsection 3 of NAC 631.177, the 
following acts constitute unprofessional conduct: 
     (a) The falsification of records of health care or medical records. 
     (b) Writing prescriptions for controlled substances in such excessive amounts as to 
constitute a departure from prevailing standards of acceptable dental practice. 
     (c) The consistent use of dental procedures, services or treatments which constitute 
a departure from prevailing standards of acceptable dental practice even though the use 
does not constitute malpractice or gross malpractice. 
     (d) The acquisition of any controlled substances from any pharmacy or other source 
by misrepresentation, fraud, deception or subterfuge. 
     (e) Making an unreasonable additional charge for laboratory tests, radiology 
services or other testing services which are ordered by the dentist and performed outside 
his or her own office. 
     (f) The failure to report to the Board as required in NAC 631.155 or to sign any 
affidavit required by the Board. 
     (g) Employing any person in violation of NAC 631.260 or failing to report to the 
Board as required by that section. 
     (h) The failure of a dentist who is administering or directly supervising the 
administration of general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate sedation to be 
physically present while a patient is under general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate 
sedation. 
     (i) Administering moderate sedation to more than one patient at a time, unless each 
patient is directly supervised by a person authorized by the Board to administer 
moderate sedation. 
     (j) Administering general anesthesia or deep sedation to more than one patient at a 
time. 
     (k) The failure to have any patient who is undergoing general anesthesia, deep 
sedation or moderate sedation monitored with a pulse oximeter or similar equipment 
required by the Board. 
     (l) Allowing a person who is not certified in basic cardiopulmonary resuscitation to 
care for any patient who is undergoing general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate 
sedation. 
     (m) The failure to obtain a patient’s written, informed consent before administering 
general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate sedation to the patient or, if the patient is 
a minor, the failure to obtain his or her parent’s or guardian’s consent unless the dentist 
determines that an emergency situation exists in which delaying the procedure to obtain 
the consent would likely cause permanent injury to the patient. 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 35



     (n) The failure to maintain a record of all written, informed consents given for the 
administration of general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate sedation. 
     (o) The failure to report to the Board, in writing, the death or emergency 
hospitalization of any patient to whom general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate 
sedation was administered. The report must be made within 30 days after the event. 
     (p) Allowing a person to administer general anesthesia, deep sedation or moderate 
sedation to a patient if the person does not hold a permit to administer such anesthesia 
or sedation unless the anesthesia or sedation is administered in a facility for which a 
permit is held as required by NRS 449.442. 
     (q) The failure of a dentist who owns a dental practice to provide copies of the 
records of a patient to a dentist or dental hygienist who provided the services as an 
employee or independent contractor of the dentist when the records are the basis of a 
complaint before the Board. Nothing in this paragraph relieves the treating dentist or 
dental hygienist from the obligation to provide records of the patient to the Board. 
     (r) The failure of a dentist who owns a dental practice to verify the license of a 
dentist or dental hygienist before offering employment or contracting for services with 
the dentist or dental hygienist as an independent contractor. 
     (s) The failure of a dentist who owns a dental practice and participates in the 
diagnosis and treatment of any patient to ensure that the services rendered by a dentist 
or dental hygienist who is an employee or independent contractor of that dentist meet 
the prevailing standards of acceptable dental practice. If a dentist or dental hygienist 
who is an employee or independent contractor of the dentist is found by substantial 
evidence to have provided services below the prevailing standards of acceptable dental 
practice, the dentist who owns the dental practice may be required to reimburse the 
patient to whom the services were provided pursuant to paragraph (l) of subsection 1 
of NRS 631.350. 
     (t) The failure of a dentist who owns a dental practice to record the name of the 
dentist or dental hygienist who provided the services in the records of a patient each 
time the services are rendered. 
     (u) The failure of a dentist who is registered to dispense controlled substances with 
the State Board of Pharmacy pursuant to chapter 453 of NRS to conduct annually a 
minimum of one self-query regarding the issuance of controlled substances through the 
Prescription Monitoring Program of the State Board of Pharmacy. 
     2.  For purposes of NRS 631.347, a plan or practice requiring a patient to select a 
dentist from a specific group does not provide the patient with a reasonable opportunity 
to select a dentist of his or her own choice, and constitutes unprofessional conduct on 
the part of any dentist participating in such a plan or practice, unless it, or another plan 
concurrently available to the patient, allows the patient to: 
     (a) Have an annual opportunity, lasting for a minimum of 30 days, to select a dentist 
of his or her own choice for all dental work to be performed during the subsequent 12 
months. Any new patient added to the plan or practice must immediately be given an 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 36



initial opportunity, lasting at least 30 days, to select the coverage supplied by the plan 
or practice or a dentist of his or her own choice. 
     (b) Receive the allowance for a procedure performed by a dentist of his or her own 
choice in substantially the same amount as he or she would if he or she used the services 
of one of the group of dentists specified by the plan or practice. 
     [Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, § XXVII, eff. 7-21-82] — (NAC A 10-21-83; 7-30-84; 9-
13-85; 9-16-85; 4-3-89; 11-28-90; R005-99, 9-7-2000; R023-06, 9-18-2006; R159-08, 
4-23-2009; R020-14, 6-23-2014; R004-17, 5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 37



NRS 631.265  Permit to administer or supervise administration of general 
anesthesia, minimal sedation, moderate sedation or deep sedation; regulations. 
      1.  No licensed dentist or person who holds a restricted license issued pursuant 
to NRS 631.275 may administer or supervise directly the administration of general 
anesthesia, minimal sedation, moderate sedation or deep sedation to dental patients 
unless the dentist or person has been issued a permit authorizing him or her to do so by 
the Board. 
      2.  The Board may issue a permit authorizing a licensed dentist or person who 
holds a restricted license issued pursuant to NRS 631.275 to administer or supervise 
directly the administration of general anesthesia, minimal sedation, moderate sedation 
or deep sedation to dental patients under such standards, conditions and other 
requirements as the Board shall by regulation prescribe. 
      (Added to NRS by 1983, 278; A 1989, 1740; 2001, 2692; 2015, 3876) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 38



 NRS 631.388  Manager of business of dental practice, office or clinic required to 
register certain information with Board.   
A person who manages the business of a dental practice, office or clinic shall register 
with the Board: 
      1.  The name and business address of the person; 
      2.  The address of the dental practice, office or clinic of the business which the 
person manages; and 
      3.  The names of the licensed dentist or other entity not prohibited from owning or 
operating a dental practice, office or clinic whose business the person manages. 
      (Added to NRS by 2009, 3002) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 39



  NRS 631.397  Practicing or offering to practice without license or certificate: 
Reporting requirements of Board.  Unless the Board determines that extenuating 
circumstances exist, the Board shall forward to the appropriate law enforcement agency 
any substantiated information submitted to the Board concerning a person who practices 
or offers to practice dentistry, dental hygiene or dental therapy without the appropriate 
license or certificate issued pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. 
      (Added to NRS by 2013, 2219) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 40



Agenda Item 5(e)(1)

Dr. Z. - The Board has received information 
alleging that Dr. Z. may have been operating a 

dental practice without proper licensure and/or 
permitting, thereby potentially violating

NAC 631.2213; NAC 631.2217; NAC 631.2219; 
NAC 631.2236; NAC 631.230; NRS 631.265; NRS 

631.388; and NRS 631.397.

Confidential Board Book Pg. 41













Agenda Item 6(a):

Approval/Rejection of Temporary 
Anesthesia Permit 

NAC 631.2254

Confidential Board Book Pg. 47



NAC 631.2254  Temporary permits. (NRS 631.190, 631.265) 

     1.  The Board may grant a temporary permit to administer general anesthesia and deep 

sedation or a temporary permit to administer moderate sedation to an applicant who meets the 

qualifications for a permit to administer that type of anesthesia or sedation pursuant to NAC 

631.2213. 

     2.  A temporary permit is valid for not more than 90 days, but the Board may, in any case it 

deems appropriate, grant a 90-day extension of the permit. 

     3.  The Board may require the holder of a temporary permit to pass an on-site inspection as a 

condition of retaining the permit. If the holder fails the inspection, his or her permit will be 

revoked. In case of revocation, the holder of a temporary permit may apply to be reinspected in 

accordance with the procedures set forth in NAC 631.2235. 

     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 11-28-90; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; R004-17, 

5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 48



Agenda Item 6(a)(1)

Jacob Ozuna, DMD 
Pediatric Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 49











Confidential Board Book Pg. 129





Agenda Item 6(a)(2):

Justin M. Vo, DMD
Pediatric Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 131













Agenda Item 6(a)(3):

Paymon P. Mehryar, DDS 
Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 204













Agenda Item 6(a)(4):

Michael G. Aglietti, DMD
General Anesthesia

Confidential Board Book Pg. 259













Agenda Item 6(a)(5):

Audrey H. Riegel, DMD
Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 268













Agenda Item 6(a)(6):

George L. Leonakis, DDS
Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 404















Agenda Item 6(b):

Approval/Rejection of 90-Day Extension of Temporary 
Anesthesia Permit
NAC 631.2254(2)

Confidential Board Book Pg. 415



NAC 631.2254  Temporary permits. (NRS 631.190, 631.265) 

     1.  The Board may grant a temporary permit to administer general anesthesia and deep 

sedation or a temporary permit to administer moderate sedation to an applicant who meets the 

qualifications for a permit to administer that type of anesthesia or sedation pursuant to NAC 

631.2213. 

     2.  A temporary permit is valid for not more than 90 days, but the Board may, in any case it 

deems appropriate, grant a 90-day extension of the permit. 

     3.  The Board may require the holder of a temporary permit to pass an on-site inspection as a 

condition of retaining the permit. If the holder fails the inspection, his or her permit will be 

revoked. In case of revocation, the holder of a temporary permit may apply to be reinspected in 

accordance with the procedures set forth in NAC 631.2235. 

     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, eff. 11-28-90; A by R005-99, 9-7-2000; R004-17, 

5-16-2018) 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 416



Agenda Item 6(b)(1):

Anna Shagharyan, DMD
Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 417









Agenda Item 6(b)(2):

Zachary M. Polonus, DDS
Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 423









Agenda Item 6(b)(3):

Farah Divanbeigi, DDS
Moderate Sedation 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 430









Agenda Item 6(b)(4):

Jonathan M. Winfield, DDS
Moderate Sedation

Confidential Board Book Pg. 436









Agenda Item 6(c):

Approval/Rejection of Voluntary Surrender of License
NAC 631.160

Confidential Board Book Pg. 442



     NAC 631.160  Voluntary surrender of license. (NRS 631.190) 

     1.  If a licensee desires voluntarily to surrender his or her license, he or she may submit to 

the Board a sworn written surrender of the license accompanied by delivery to the Board of the 

certificate of registration previously issued to him or her. The Board may accept or reject the 

surrender of the license. If the Board accepts the surrender of the license, the surrender is 

absolute and irrevocable. The Board will notify any agency or person of the surrender as it 

deems appropriate. 

     2.  The voluntary surrender of a license does not preclude the Board from hearing a 

complaint for disciplinary action filed against the licensee. 

     [Bd. of Dental Exam’rs, § XX, eff. 7-21-82] 

 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 443



Agenda Item 6(c)(1):

Loren Cadelinia, DDS, MS

Confidential Board Book Pg. 444





Agenda Item 6(c)(2):

Sierra Williams, RDH

Confidential Board Book Pg. 447





Agenda Item 6(c)(3):

Kathie Ann Russell, RDH

Confidential Board Book Pg. 450





Agenda Item 6(c)(4):

Patrick A. O'Connor, DDS

Confidential Board Book Pg. 453





Agenda Item 6(c)(5):

Anthony Q. Phan, DMD

Confidential Board Book Pg. 458







Agenda Item 6(d):

Review, Consider and Discuss Proposed Budget 
for Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) June 30th, 2024, 
and Possible Recommendation to the Board 

Regarding Approval/Rejection of the Proposed 
Budget for FYE June 30th, 2024

NRS 631.190

Confidential Board Book Pg. 463



    NRS 631.190  Powers and duties. [Effective January 1, 2020.]  In addition to the powers 

and duties provided in this chapter, the Board shall: 

1. Adopt rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

2. Appoint such committees, review panels, examiners, officers, employees, agents,

attorneys, investigators and other professional consultants and define their duties and incur such 

expense as it may deem proper or necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter, the 

expense to be paid as provided in this chapter. 

3. Fix the time and place for and conduct examinations for the granting of licenses to

practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy. 

4. Examine applicants for licenses to practice dentistry, dental hygiene and dental therapy.

5. Collect and apply fees as provided in this chapter.

6. Keep a register of all dentists, dental hygienists and dental therapists licensed in this

State, together with their addresses, license numbers and renewal certificate numbers. 

7. Have and use a common seal.

8. Keep such records as may be necessary to report the acts and proceedings of the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 631.368, the records must be open to public inspection. 

9. Maintain offices in as many localities in the State as it finds necessary to carry out the

provisions of this chapter. 

10. Have discretion to examine work authorizations in dental offices or dental laboratories.

      [Part 4:152:1951; A 1953, 363] — (NRS A 1963, 150; 1967, 865; 1993, 2743; 2009, 3002; 

2017, 989, 2848; 2019, 3205, effective January 1, 2020) 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 464



Agenda Item 6(d)(1):

BDO-Mishey Bolusan

Confidential Board Book Pg. 465



Actual Increase Proposed Budget

July 2022 - June 2023 (Decrease) % FYE 2024

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

40000 - Dentist Licenses & Fees

40104 - DDS Retired/Disabled 2,655.00 0% 2,655.00 

40100 - DDS Active License Fee 716,720.00 5% 752,556.00 

40102 - DDS Inactive License Fee 30,720.00 0% 30,720.00 

40135 - DDS Active/Inactive/Suspend 1,400.00 1% 1,414.00 

40136 - DDS Active Revoked License 1,000.00 100% 2,000.00 

40140 - Specialty License App 31,450.00 0% 31,450.00 

40145 - Limited License App 1,650.00 0% 1,650.00 

40115 - Limited License Renewal Fee 8,100.00 0% 8,100.00 

40146 - Limited License-S Application 525.00 0% 525.00 

40116 - LL-S Renewal Fee 1,270.00 0% 1,270.00 

40000 - License Activation Fees - 100% 72,000.00 

40180 - Anesthesia Site Permit App 18,000.00 1% 18,180.00 

40182 - CS/GA/Site Permit Renewals 89,800.00 1% 90,698.00 

40183 - GA/CS/DS or Site Permit ReInp 30,500.00 0% 30,500.00 

40175 - Conscious Sedation Permit Appl 5,300.00 0% 5,300.00 

40160 - Conscious Sedation Permit ReInp 4,500.00 0% 4,500.00 

40170 - General Anesthesia Permit Appl 11,550.00 0% 11,550.00 

40155 - General Anesthesia Permit ReInp 500.00 0% 500.00 

40186 - Pediatric Anesthesia Permit App 7,100.00 0% 7,100.00 

40184 - Infection Control Inspection 14,900.00 0% 14,900.00 

40212 - DDS ADEX License Application 69,830.00 0% 69,830.00 

40205 - DDS Credential Appl Fee-Spclty 15,600.00 0% 15,600.00 

40211 - DDS WREB License Application 75,900.00 0% 75,900.00 

40214 - DDS License by Endorsement 3,680.00 0% 3,680.00 

40000 - Dentist Licenses & Fees - Other 7,350.00 0% 7,350.00 

Total 40000 - Dentist Licenses & Fees 1,150,000.00 1,259,928.00 

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners

Proposed Budget

FYE 6/30/2024

Confidential Board Book Pg. 466



Actual Increase Proposed Budget

July 2022 - June 2023 (Decrease) % FYE 2024

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners

Proposed Budget

FYE 6/30/2024

50000 - Dental Hygiene Licenses & Fees

40105 - RDH Active License Fee 225,000.00                   0% 225,000.00             

40106 - RDH Inactive License Fee 800.00                           0% 800.00                     

50000 - License Activation Fees -                                  100% 30,000.00               

40126 - RDH Reinstate Revoked License 900.00                           0% 900.00                     

40110 - RDH LA/N2O Permit Fee 4,700.00                        1% 4,747.00                 

40224 - RDH ADEX License Application 7,200.00                        0% 7,200.00                 

40222 - RDH WREB License Application 48,750.00                      0% 48,750.00               

40226 - RDH License by Endorsement 9,600.00                        0% 9,600.00                 

50000 - Dental Hygiene Licenses & Fees - Other 4,050.00                        0% 4,050.00                 

Total 50000 - Dental Hygiene Licenses & Fees 301,000.00                   331,047.00             

50750 - Other Licenses & Fees

43650 - Reimbursed Investigation Costs 4,400.00                        1% 4,444.00                 

40229 - CE Course Income 650.00                           0% 650.00                     

40220 - License Verification Fee 5,000.00                        1% 5,050.00                 

40227 - CEU Provider Fee 1,200.00                        0% 1,200.00                 

40225 - Duplicate License Fee 2,000.00                        1% 2,020.00                 

40555 - Fines 500.00                           100% 1,000.00                 

40185 - Lists/Labels Printed 650.00                           0% 650.00                     

40600 - Miscellaneous Income 6,500.00                        3% 6,695.00                 

50750 - Other Licenses Fees - Other 2,100.00                        1% 2,121.00                 

Total 50750 - Other Licenses & Fees 23,000.00                      23,830.00               

Total Income 1,474,000.00                1,614,805.00         

Confidential Board Book Pg. 467



Actual Increase Proposed Budget

July 2022 - June 2023 (Decrease) % FYE 2024

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners

Proposed Budget

FYE 6/30/2024

Expense

60500-1 - Bank Service Fees 40.00                              13% 45.20                       

60500-2 - Merchant Fees 45,000.00                      0% 45,000.00               

60500 - Bank Charges - Other 50.00                              2% 51.00                       

68000 - Conferences & Seminars 10,000.00                      -85% 1,500.00                 

63000 - Dues & Subscriptions 18,500.00                      0% 18,500.00               

65100 - Furniture & Equipment 40,000.00                      -63% 15,000.00               

Tenant Improvements 80,000.00                      -100% -                           

65500 - Finance Charges 100.00                           0% 100.00                     

66500-1 - Liability Insurance 4,000.00                        0% 4,000.00                 

66500-2 - Workers Compensation 2,200.00                        0% 2,200.00                 

66500 - Insurance - Other -                                  0% -                           

66520-1 - Licensing Software 57,500.00                      0% 57,500.00               

66520-2 - Email, Website Services 11,000.00                      -55% 4,999.50                 

66520-3 - Internet Services 7,200.00                        0% 7,200.00                 

73500 - Information Technology - Other -                                  0% -                           

73500-1 - Computer Repair/Upgrade -                                  0% -                           

66600 - Office Supplies 7,700.00                        0% 7,700.00                 

66650 - Office Expense - Other -                                  0% -                           

68710 - Miscellaneous Expenses 2,400.00                        0% 2,400.00                 

68700 - Repairs & Maintenance - Other -                                  0% -                           

68700-1 - Janitorial 7,200.00                        0% 7,200.00                 

Moving Costs 6,500.00                        -100% -                           

68700-2 - Copier Maintenance 2,200.00                        4% 2,288.00                 

68725 - Security 1,400.00                        5% 1,470.00                 

68715 - Shredding Services 300.00                           9% 327.00                     

68720 - Utilities 4,400.00                        20% 5,280.00                 

67000 - Printing 2,300.00                        4% 2,392.00                 

67500 - Postage & Delivery 6,100.00                        2% 6,222.00                 

Confidential Board Book Pg. 468



Actual Increase Proposed Budget

July 2022 - June 2023 (Decrease) % FYE 2024

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners

Proposed Budget

FYE 6/30/2024

68500 - Rent/Lease Expense - Other -                                  0% -                           

68500-1 - Equipment Lease 1,500.00                        0% 1,500.00                 

68500-2 - Office 57,600.00                      0% 57,600.00               

68500-4 - Storage Warehouse 3,100.00                        1% 3,131.00                 

75000 - Telephone - Other -                                  0% -                           

75000-1 - Telephone - Office 384.00                           0% 384.00                     

73550 - Per Diem 25.00                              0% 25.00                       

73600 - Professional Fee - Other 80,000.00                      0% 80,000.00               

73600-1 - Accounting/Bookkeeping 18,000.00                      0% 18,000.00               

73600-2 - Legal - General 8,000.00                        0% 8,000.00                 

73700 - Verification Services 15,000.00                      3% 15,450.00               

72851 - Anesthesia Evaluator - Wages 7,700.00                        1% 7,777.00                 

72801 - IC Inspector - Wages 10,000.00                      7% 10,700.00               

72146 - Receptionist - Wages 25,000.00                      81% 45,240.00               

72149 - Receptionist - Accrued/Used Vacation 1,395.00                        0% 1,395.00                 

72148 - Receptionist - Accrued/Used Sickleave 1,350.00                        0% 1,350.00                 

72101 - Executive Director - Wages 127,100.00                   6% 135,005.62             

72102 - Exec Dir - Accrued/Used Sickleave 5,700.00                        0% 5,700.00                 

72103 - Exec Dir - Accrued/Used Vacation 5,000.00                        0% 5,000.00                 

72301 - Licensing Specialist - Wages 51,300.00                      -7% 47,840.38               

72303 - Lic Spec - Accrued/Used Sickleave 4,910.00                        0% 4,910.00                 

72304 - Lic Spec - Accrued/Used Vacation 4,475.00                        0% 4,475.00                 

72301 - Licensing Specialist - Wages -                                  100% 47,840.00               

72303 - Lic Spec - Accrued/Used Sickleave -                                  0% 4,910.00                 

72304 - Lic Spec - Accrued/Used Vacation -                                  0% 4,475.00                 

72133 - Site Inspect & CE Coord - Wages 44,000.00                      22% 53,560.00               

72137 - SI & CE - Accrued/Used Sickleave 2,500.00                        0% 2,500.00                 

72138 - SI & CE - Accrued/Used Vacation 2,225.00                        0% 2,225.00                 

72201 - IT Coordinator - Wages -                                  0% -                           

Confidential Board Book Pg. 469



Actual Increase Proposed Budget

July 2022 - June 2023 (Decrease) % FYE 2024

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners

Proposed Budget

FYE 6/30/2024

72203 - IT Coord - Accrued/Used Sickleave -                                  0% -                           

72204 - IT Coord - Accrued/Used Vacation -                                  0% -                           

72131 - Public Info & Travel Coord - Wages -                                  0% -                           

72135 - Trav Cor - Accrued/Used Sickleave -                                  0% -                           

72139 - Trav Cor - Accrued/Used Vacation -                                  0% -                           

72141 - Administrative Assistant - Wages 44,000.00                      82% 80,000.00               

72143 - Admin Assist - Accrued/Used Sickleave 2,610.00                        0% 2,610.00                 

72144 - Admin Assist - Accrued/Used Vacation 2,530.00                        0% 2,530.00                 

72161 - Legal Counsel - Wages 115,000.00                   17% 135,000.00             

72162 - Legal - Accrued/Used Sickleave 6,635.00                        0% 6,635.00                 

72163 - Legal - Accrued/Used Vacation 6,200.00                        0% 6,200.00                 

72166 - Legal Asst - Wages 42,000.00                      36% 57,200.00               

72168 - Legal Asst - Accrued/Used Sickleave 2,405.00                        0% 2,405.00                 

72167 - Legal Asst - Accrued/Used Vacation 2,405.00                        0% 2,405.00                 

72173 - DGC - Accrued/Used Vacation 4,710.00                        0% 4,710.00                 

72172 - DGC - Accrued/Used Sickleave 4,710.00                        0% 4,710.00                 

72171 - DGC - Wages 83,000.00                      63% 135,000.00             

72181 - Investigator - Wages -                                  0% -                           

72901 - PSC - Wages 40,000.00                      0% 40,000.00               

72010 - Payroll Services Fees 7,800.00                        1% 7,878.00                 

72005 - Payroll Tax Expense 17,060.00                      18% 20,130.80               

72600 - Retirement Fund Expense (PERS) 148,800.00                   18% 175,584.00             

65525 - Health Insurance 44,000.00                      0% 44,000.00               

72000 - Employee Wages & Benefits - Other 5,000.00                        1% 5,050.00                 

73650-5 - BOD Hearing Stipend 150.00                           0% 150.00                     

72400 - Board of Directors Expense - Other 600.00                           3817% 23,502.00               

72400-1 - Director Stipends 31,000.00                      -76% 7,499.99                 

72400-2 - Committee Mtgs - Stipends 7,000.00                        1% 7,070.00                 

72400-3 - Director Travel Expenses 710.00                           0% 710.00                     

Confidential Board Book Pg. 470



Actual Increase Proposed Budget

July 2022 - June 2023 (Decrease) % FYE 2024

Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners

Proposed Budget

FYE 6/30/2024

72400-9 - Refreshments - Board Meetings 2,400.00                        2% 2,448.00                 

60001-1 - Evaluator's Fee 35.00                              12% 39.20                       

60001-4 - Travel/Misc. Expense 5,500.00                        -100% -                           

73651-1 - Review Panel Fee 7,000.00                        0% 7,000.00                 

60002 - Infection Control Inspection -                                  0% -                           

60002-4 - Travel/Misc Expense 2,950.00                        -100% -                           

40800 - Interest Income (1,000.00)                       0% (1,000.00)                

Senate Bill 522 - Salary Increase -                                  100% 88,400.00               

Contingent Liability-Software 100,000.00                   -100% -                           

Suspense 100.00                           0% 100.00                     

Total Expense 1,527,664.00                1,628,334.68         

(53,664.00)                    (13,529.68)              

Confidential Board Book Pg. 471




